
Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN AGENDA

Barbara Landry Meeting Room
2 Main Street

MONDAY, AUGUST 23, 2021 6:30 PM

  
1. Call to Order
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance
  
3. Citizens' Forum
  
4. Scheduled Appointments

 4.1. Bill Swift, Goldens on the Green, Sunday October 17, 2021 
 4.2. Chuck McAuley, Speed limit change request for State Highway 122 
 4.3. Senator Gary Daniels, Legislative Updates 
  
5. Interviews: Open Space Advisory Committee Applicants
 5.1. Applications and Letters of Interest 
  
6. Administration
 6.1. Administrative updates 
  
7. Staff Reports
 7.1. New Accountant Welcome 
 7.2. FY21 Revenue & Expenditure Status Update 
 7.3. Part-Time Dispatcher Hire 
 7.4. CLG Grant Paperwork 
 7.5. Garage Doors 
 7.6. COVID-19 Task Force Update 
  
8. Approvals
 8.1. Baboosic Lake Community Septic Warrants 

Page 1 of 157



 8.2. Assessing 
 8.3. AP, Payroll and Minutes 
  
9. Action Items
  
10. Old/New Business
  
 Adjournment
  
 Next Meeting: September 13, 2021

This meeting is also accessible via ZOOM 
Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87497103282
Or Telephone: (301) 715-8592  
Webinar ID: 874 9710 3282

Page 2 of 157

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87497103282


“ GOLDENS ON THE GREEN”
Flash Mob and Social
Sunday, October 17th

1 PM to 3 PM

Bill Swift
10 Saddle Hill Road

Amherst, NH
603-759-9686 (m)

Page 3 of 157



“ GOLDENS ON THE GREEN”
Purpose: Social Gathering for Greater Amherst Golden Retriever owners and to raise 
money for the Humane Society for Greater Nashua (HSFN)

Date: Sunday, October 17th

Time: 1 PM to 3 PM, set-up begins at 9 AM

Cost: Requesting $10 per Golden donation to the Humane Society for Greater Nashua

Participation: Estimate 30-40 Golden Retrievers, 60-80 family members/friends

Parking: Cars will be parked in the existing parking spaces around the Green

Publicity: Facebook , Flyers and word-of-mouth

Clean-Up: HSFN will provide dog waste bags and buckets (4) and remove them at end
We will “Leave it as we found it.”

Page 4 of 157



“ GOLDENS ON THE GREEN”
Safety Topics (COVID-19, etc)

1. Face Masks are optional

2. Social Distancing (at least 6’) is suggested

3. Hand santizer will be available

4. Dogs must be on a leash – owners’ responsibility

5. Dog bites or dog fights – owners’ responsibility

Page 5 of 157



“ GOLDENS ON THE GREEN”
Requesting Town Approval

      to hold event on Amherst Town Green on October 17th

Page 6 of 157



Proposed Speed Limit Reduction of NH-122 
between the intersection of Amherst 
center and 101 (poneham rd).

Page 7 of 157



Concerns
 Heavily used for bicyclists, pedestrians, and motorists
 No sidewalks, side paths, or other multimodal friendly transport
 Speed limit of 40 mph misdirects GPS and navigational aids to take 122 when 101 

entrance at Milford is more appropriate
 Mismatched speed limits within Amherst and other communities

o 35 MPH at golf course, yet 40 MPH near town center with more houses and 
families

o Route 13 in Mont Vernon cuts down to 25 MPH, yet has same housing density as 
122 near Amherst

o
 At least 5 young families live on this stretch of road

o Children cross the road the daily
 10 unique bus stops in the morning, approximately 16-20 daily.
 Multiple houses are within less than 10 feet of the road

Dismissals
 NH State highway authorities are “automotive centric” in thinking

o “Speed limits are set within 15% of what motorists will drive at”
o Motorists push 50+ MPH readily all day

 NH State highway more concerned with commonality of accidents between automobiles 
when I have engaged them, not the safety of pedestrians, children, or bicyclists

Benefits of a lower speed limit (30 mph)
 Encourage more active use of 101 in favor of cutting through Amherst with 122.

o GPS would calculate and direct road users passing from Milford and western 
Nashua to use 101 entrance by Shaw’s instead of 122.

 Police would have greater authority to issue tickets and encourage safer driving.
o At road safety meetings, police have continuously highlighted that lower speed 

limits give them “teeth” in the eyes of magistrate. A “50 in a 40, the ticket gets 
thrown out.”

 Children and families in isolated neighborhoods nearby could utilize downtown without 
driving for fear of safety.

 Children can cross the road more safely

Additionally
 What purpose does 122 serve by the time it reaches 101 at Poneham? Is the town of 

Amherst capable of adopting or taking stewardship of the road?

Page 8 of 157



Letter From NHDOT

Mr. McAuley,

 

As you can see, your message to Councilor Pignatelli was forwarded to my attention.

 

The commissioner of transportation’s authority to determine state speed zones is delegated to the 
State Traffic Engineer.

 

Our records indicate that the existing speed limit of 40 mph dates back to 1971.  At that time, it 
was likely lowered to 40 mph from the statutory 55 mph speed limit for roads not defined as 
either a business district, urban residence district (both 30 mph), or rural residence district (35 
mph).  The speed limit drops to 30 mph in the northbound direction just before the more 
congested area approaching the intersection with Amherst Street.

 

Changing the speed limit, essentially creating a new state speed zone, would need to be 
supported by an engineering and traffic investigation.  Because that investigation can be fairly 
involved, we ask that the request be made through the local governing body as they have the 
ultimate responsibility to enforce it and can provide local perspective.

 

Based on your message, it seems that you believe the prevailing speed on this road is likely well 
above the current posted speed limit of 40 mph.  If that is the case, an engineering and traffic 
investigation is not likely to support reducing the speed limit.  In the same vein, reducing the 
speed limit would not likely affect the prevailing speed without targeted and sustained 
enforcement.

 

While an engineering and traffic investigation considers several factors, the most weight is given 
to the “analysis of the current speed distribution of free-flowing vehicles”, or speed 
study.  Recommended practice to set the speed limit within 5 mph of the measured 85th 
percentile speed of traffic.  Studies have shown that the 85th percentile speed coincides with the 
lowest crash rate for a particular highway segment.  It also represents the value that defines 
“speeding” as the 15% of drivers on the high end of the speed distribution.

 

Page 9 of 157



While I would not discourage you from reaching out to the Town of Amherst with your concern 
and would be happy to conduct an engineering and traffic investigation at their request, I wanted 
you to know that speed management is more than simply an issue with changing the value on the 
speed limit sign.

 

Best regards,

 

William R. Lambert, PE

Traffic Engineer/Administrator

NHDOT Bureau of Traffic

P.O. Box 483, 18 Smokey Bear Blvd.

Concord, NH 03302-0483

(603) 271-1679

Page 10 of 157



Page 11 of 157



Page 12 of 157



Page 13 of 157



Page 14 of 157



Page 15 of 157



Page 16 of 157



Page 17 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Administrative updates Department: Administration
Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
Updates on a number of issues, including (but not limited to):
    ARPA funding
    Internet expansion, including Comcast and Consolidated
    NRPC projects
    Master Plan Update (Nic Strong) 
    

 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. mpsc_2021-08-18_ns

Page 18 of 157



Amherst Master Plan

Planning Board Update

August 18, 2021

Page 19 of 157



Master Plan Steering Committee History

• Formed by the Amherst Planning Board in the Spring of 2020
• Comprised of members representing Town and School committees as 

well as at-large members from the community
• The MPSC meets once a month

2
Page 20 of 157



Master Plan Steering Committee Members
• Tracie Adams Planning Board
• Chris Yates Planning Board
• Dwight Brew Board of Selectmen
• Jared Hardner Conservation Commission
• Tom Gauthier Schools
• Will Ludt Heritage Commission
• Joe Ilsley Community Member
• Tim Kachmar Community Member

Tom Quinn had to step down due to Planning Board quorum isssues

Page 21 of 157



Survey Response
The MPSC created a survey in December 2020 to gather inputs from Amherst 
residents and businesses to help guide the Amherst NH Master Plan update 
(Envision Amherst).  It closed on January 18, 2021. 

4

1,815 responses were received. 
Thank you to everyone who took the 
time to participate.

In addition to mostly multiple-
choice survey questions, there 
were also a number of open-
response questions. We received 
2,327 open-response inputs.

Page 22 of 157



Resilience Planning / NRPC
• A Request for Proposal for assistance with the Master Plan update was put 

out in February 2021.
• Resilience Planning was chosen to assist the MPSC in developing the Master Plan 

update.

• A Request for Proposal for a Build Out Analysis was put out in June 2021.
• The Nashua Regional Planning Commission (NRPC) was selected to perform 

different build-out scenarios.

5
Page 23 of 157



Current Status

• Resilience Planning is collecting data for a series of Existing Conditions 
Profiles:  Population and Housing; Transportation; Water Resources; 
Natural Resources; Recreation; Land Use and Zoning; Historic and 
Cultural; Public Facilities and Services; Economic Development

• The MPSC is reviewing each one and enlisting the help of boards and 
commissions and department heads in the review

• The Resources tab on the website provides links to the current Master 
Plan and the Existing Conditions Profiles once reviewed 

6
Page 24 of 157



Current Status

7

https://resilience.mysocialpinpoint.com/amherst-master-plan

Page 25 of 157

https://resilience.mysocialpinpoint.com/amherst-master-plan


Next Steps

• Work will be completed on the Existing Conditions Profiles
• A public forum is being coordinated for the fall
• NRPC is working on the base scenario information for the build out 

analysis 

8

Figure 2: (Left to Right: Model Results for Base Scenario, Standard Alternative, 
and Community Alternative, Pelham, NH, 2011 

Page 26 of 157



Timeline

9
Page 27 of 157



QUESTIONS?

10
Page 28 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: New Accountant Welcome Department: Finance Department
Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: Laurie May

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The Board had asked to meet the new Accountant, Pamela-Rae Lindof, when she 
arrived.  Today was her first day.  Please welcome Pam.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
None
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
None

Page 29 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: FY21 Revenue & Expenditure Status 
Update

Department: Finance Department

Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: Laurie May

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
Informational Update on the revenues and expenditures for FY 21 as of August 18, 
2021.  We are making headway on processing missing journal entries as we find 
them.  I'm trying to create check lists to keep track of what journal entries are 
necessary so they don't get missed.  When our new accountant comes, I hope to be 
able to automate some of the processes to lessen the need for manual journal 
entries.  Thank you for your patience as we work through this.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
None, just an update on where we stand on getting all FY21 items processed.  We're 
still working on balancing and making sure all revenues and expenditures are in 
Springbrook.  We're trying to keep FY22 up to date as well.  I will have an FY22 
quarterly report for you at the end of next month.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 043021 Budget v Actual - Revenue & Expenditures
2. 043021 Budget v Actual - Revenue
3. FY 21 Expenditure Budget Status
4. FY21 Revenue Budget Status

Page 30 of 157



$ % $ %

Department Budget Actual Remaining Remaining Department Budget Actual Remaining Remaining

Executive 468,818 334,461 134,357 28.7% Street Lighting 27,350 18,739 8,611 31.5%

Election, Reg & Vital Stats 220,623 183,097 37,526 17.0% Souhegan Regional Landfill 391,579 277,740 113,839 29.1%

Financial Administration 311,458 249,819 61,639 19.8% Landfill 298,832 251,127 47,705 16.0%

Tax Collecting 138,342 105,183 33,159 24.0% Health Administration 2,159 1,801 358 16.6%

Assessing 181,166 138,683 42,483 23.4% Animal Control 401 729 -328 -81.8%

Legal 45,800 46,321 -521 -1.1% Health & Human Services 50,000 50,000 0 0.0%

Personnel Administration 226,656 188,008 38,648 17.1% Direct Assistance (Welfare) 14,326 379 13,947 97.4%

Planning 110,546 17,164 93,382 84.5% Recreation 404,545 323,969 80,576 19.9%

Zoning 440,057 324,193 115,864 26.3% Parks 13,773 7,797 5,976 43.4%

Government Buildings 333,048 261,629 71,419 21.4% PMEC 1 0 1 100.0%

Cemeteries 41,002 23,935 17,067 41.6% Library 1,025,175 744,174 281,001 27.4%

Property/Liability Insurance 132,526 130,526 2,000 1.5% Patriotic Purposes 8,500 0 8,500 100.0%

Police 2,687,160 2,050,753 636,407 23.7% Heritage Commission 2,572 406 2,166 84.2%

Rescue 637,007 499,635 137,372 21.6% Conservation Commission 14,991 13,575 1,416 9.4%

Fire 685,840 417,451 268,389 39.1% Principal - Long Term Bonds 1,156,000 956,000 200,000 17.3%

Emergency Management 8,501 8,500 1 0.0% Interest - Long Term Bonds 114,723 110,479 4,244 3.7%

Communications 480,784 382,372 98,412 20.5% COVID-19 Expenses 0 50,230 -50,230 N/A

Public Works Administration 421,944 304,820 117,124 27.8%

DPW Operations 4,192,495 2,297,649 1,894,846 45.2% Total General Fund Expenses 15,288,700 10,771,345 4,517,355 0 29.5%

Town of Amherst

FY 21 Budget v Actual - Expense

As of 4/30/21

Page 31 of 157



$ Collected %

Department Budget Actual / (Uncollected) Remaining

Taxes (Other than Property Tax) 31,000 15,000 (16,000) -51.6%

Current Property Tax Interest 170,000 27,774 (142,226) -83.7%

Business Licenses & Permits 212,000 160,973 (51,027) -24.1%

Motor Vehicle Permit Fees 3,000,000 1,379,088 (1,620,912) -54.0%

Building Permits 99,500 146,288 46,788 53.0%

Other Licenses, Permits & Fees 44,280 28,227 (16,053) -36.3%

State Municipal Aid 0 76,613 76,613 N/A

Meals & Rooms Tax 582,000 586,941 4,941 99.2%

Highway Block Grant 330,000 195,035 (134,965) -40.9%

State & Fed. Forest Land Reim. 11 0 (11) -100.0%

Other State Revenue 400 268,430 268,030 -66907.6%

Other Intergovernmental Revenue 90,000 92,409 2,409 97.3%

Charges for Services 551,920 203,298 (348,622) 163.2%

Sale of Municipal Property 26,400 8,200 (18,200) 168.9%

Interest on Investments 340,200 101,531 (238,669) -70.2%

Fines and Forfeits 2,500 25 (2,475) -99.0%

Misc. Revenue 2,000 91,531 89,531 -4376.6%

Total General Fund Revenue 5,480,211 3,289,832 -2,190,379 -40.0%

Town of Amherst
FY 21 Budget v Actual - Revenue

As of 4/30/21

Page 32 of 157



Page 33 of 157



Page 34 of 157



Page 35 of 157



Page 36 of 157



Page 37 of 157



Page 38 of 157



Page 39 of 157



Page 40 of 157



Page 41 of 157



Page 42 of 157



Page 43 of 157



Page 44 of 157



Page 45 of 157



Page 46 of 157



Page 47 of 157



Page 48 of 157



Page 49 of 157



Page 50 of 157



Page 51 of 157



Page 52 of 157



Page 53 of 157



Page 54 of 157



Page 55 of 157



Page 56 of 157



Page 57 of 157



Page 58 of 157



Page 59 of 157



Page 60 of 157



Page 61 of 157



Page 62 of 157



Page 63 of 157



Page 64 of 157



Page 65 of 157



Page 66 of 157



Page 67 of 157



Page 68 of 157



Page 69 of 157



Page 70 of 157



Page 71 of 157



Page 72 of 157



Page 73 of 157



Page 74 of 157



Page 75 of 157



Page 76 of 157



Page 77 of 157



Page 78 of 157



Page 79 of 157



Page 80 of 157



Page 81 of 157



Page 82 of 157



Page 83 of 157



Page 84 of 157



Page 85 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Part-Time Dispatcher Hire Department: Police Department
Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: Mark Reams

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
Part-time Dispatcher appointment to augment agency's part-time employee roster for 
necessary shift coverage.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
N/A
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
N/A
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
Approve
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
Move to appoint Ms. Jordynne Walker to the position of Part-Time Dispatcher with the 
Amherst Public Safety Communications Center.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. PT Dispatcher, Memo and PAR

Page 86 of 157



Page 87 of 157



Page 88 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: CLG Grant Paperwork Department: Community Development 
Office

Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: Nic Strong

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
In February of 2021, Will Ludt, on behalf of the Heritage Commission, submitted a 
Certified Local Government Grant Application to the NH Division of Historical 
Resources (DHR), to map historic resources outside of the Historic District and create a 
new StoryMap of some of the Town's most interesting historic landmarks.  Signs will be 
placed at selected locations that will include a QR code that can be scanned to smart 
devices so that information can be accessed on the spot.  The project is to be 
accomplished with NRPC and Katy Holmes, Architectural Historian, along with the 
Heritage Commission, Amherst Historians, citizens and students.  See grant application 
attached.

On May 5, 2021, we were informed that the Town of Amherst's grant application had 
been funded in the amount of $5,200, although the DHR was still awaiting the money 
from the National Park Service.  

On August 2, 2021, we received confirmation that the money was available and the last 
few paperwork items were required. To that end, we are requesting that the Board of 
Selectmen designate a Town Official on the attached Certificate of Municipality to enter 
into and to sign the grant agreement.  There is a motion included in the Certificate of 
Municipality for this purpose.

Once the Board of Selectmen has made this resolution, the remaining paperwork 
(Certificate of Municipality and Form SF-424B) will be completed and submitted to the 
DHR so that the project can take place.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
No budget impact - in-kind amount of $4,012.00 for volunteer time was indicated on the 
application.
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:

Page 89 of 157



That the Board of Selectmen move to authorize a Town Official to enter into this 
agreement with the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources for the CLG Grant 
as described above.
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move that ________________________ (name and title of Town Official signing the 
agreement) is duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of the 
Town of Amherst with the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the 
Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, and is further authorized to execute any 
documents on behalf of this municipality which may be in his/her judgment desirable or 
necessary to effect the purpose of this resolution.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2021 CLG Grant Application
2. 2021 Complete Grant Package-Amherst
3. Municipal Certification of Authority
4. SF 424 Forms

Page 90 of 157



Page 91 of 157



Page 92 of 157



Page 93 of 157



Page 94 of 157



Page 95 of 157



Page 96 of 157



Page 97 of 157



Page 98 of 157



Page 99 of 157



Page 100 of 157



Page 101 of 157



Page 102 of 157



Page 103 of 157



Instructions to Grantees 
 

 

     
NEW  HAMPSHIRE  DIVISION  OF  HISTORICAL  RESOURCES 
State of New Hampshire,  Department of Natural and Cultural Resources            603-271-3483 

 19 Pillsbury Street, Concord  NH  03301-3570        603-271-3485 
 

 FAX  603-271-3433       preservation@dncr.nh.gov       Voice/TDD  RELAY ACCESS   1-800-735-2964 
 
 
 
 
The following contract materials are needed from grantees to process your grant payment 
(details outlined below).  Use this checklist to ensure that all appropriate materials are 
provided to the DHR: 
 

__ Grant Agreement 
__ Certificate of Municipality  
__ Scope of Work 
__ Certificate of Insurance 
__  SF-424B or Sf-424D (as appropriate) 

 
 
Item 1: 
 

Municipalities should execute a Certificate of Municipality before the Grant Agreement is signed.  This 
certificate designates who is authorized by the town or city to enter into agreements and contracts. Dates 
are VERY IMPORTANT on this form! The date of the meeting of the town to accept the grant to appoint 
the legal signer must be either before or the same day that you sign all the other grant documents (not 
after). Sign and notarize the Certificate of Municipalities before or on the same day you sign and 
notarize the grant agreement. Keep a copy for your files. 

1. It is important that the person signing the Certificate of Municipalities be previously authorized to 
do so by the board. 

2. Where the secretary or clerk is to sign, this must be the secretary or clerk of the town.   
 
Item 2:  
 
Grant Agreement 

After completing Step 1, execute the enclosed Grant Agreement.   Sign and date the agreement in front of 
a notary so the dates are the same.   Keep one copy for your files and return one to the DHR. 

 
Item 4: 
 
Scope of Work 
 Please submit a scope of work detailing the work to be accomplished under the grant as well as the 

name(s) of the contractor(s) doing the work.   
 
Item 5: 

 

Page 104 of 157



3 
 

 
Certificate of Insurance 

This is the municipality’s Certificate of Insurance, not the contractor for your proposed project.  
Comprehensive General Liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in 
amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per occurrence; and fire and extended 
coverage insurance covering all property subject to in an amount not less than 80% of the whole 
replacement value of the property;  and Workers’ Compensation . The policies shall be on policy forms and 
endorsements approved for use in the State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and 
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire. The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting 
Officer, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. 
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance for 
all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the 
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof 
shall be attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a 
clause requiring the insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer, or his or her successor, no less 
than ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification of the policy. The State shall not be 
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for 
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of 
New Hampshire Workers’ Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the Services under this 
Agreement. 
 
Please have the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, 172 Pembroke Road, Concord, NH 03301 
listed as the additional certificate holder.  

 
Item 6:  
 
SF-424 Series 
 This is a series of forms from the Federal government that must be completed.  The SF-424B is for non-

construction projects and the SF-424D is for construction projects.  They should be signed by the person 
authorized to enter into contracts with the State.   

 
If you have any questions, please contact Brandee Loughlin at Brandee.R.Loughlin@dncr.nh.gov. 
 

Page 105 of 157

mailto:Brandee.R.Loughlin@dncr.nh.gov


GRANT AGREEMENT      Grant # CLG-P21AS00231-01 
 

New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources 
 
This agreement between the State of New Hampshire, Division of Historical Resources (hereinafter “DHR") and the 
Town of Amherst (hereinafter "Grantee") is to witness receipt of funds subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. GRANT PERIOD: Pending Contract Execution – September 30, 2022 
 
2. OBLIGATION OF THE GRANTEE: The Grantee agrees to accept $5,200 and apply it to the project(s) described in 

the grant application and approved budget referenced herein. In the performance of this grant agreement the 
Grantee is in all respects an independent contractor and is neither an agent nor employee of the State. 

 
An acknowledgement of National Park Service support must be made in connection with the publication or 
dissemination of any printed, audio-visual, or electronic material based on, or developed under, any activity 
supported by Historic Preservation Fund grant funds, in the form of the following statement: 

 
The activity that is the subject of this [type of publication] has been financed in part with Federal funds 
from the National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior. However, the contents and opinions do 
not necessarily reflect the views or policies of the Department of the Interior, nor does the mention of trade 
names or commercial products constitute endorsement or recommendation by the Department of the 
Interior. 

 
The Grantee agrees to abide by the limitations, conditions and procedure outlined herein and in the attached 
appendices.  If appropriated funds for this grants program are reduced or terminated, all payments under this grant 
may cease. 
 

3. PAYMENT will be made according to the schedule in section B of the attached appendices, following Governor and 
Executive Council Approval, if applicable. 

 
4. FINAL REPORT: The Grantee agrees to submit a final financial and project report in a format provided by the DHR, 

no more than 30 days after the end of the grant period.  
 
5. SOVERIGN IMMUNITY: No provision of this contract is to be deemed a waiver of sovereign immunity by the State 

of New Hampshire. 
 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL     GRANTEE 
AND CULTURAL RESOURCES    Name _________________________________ 
        Address________________________________ 
________________________________     ________________________________ 
Sarah L. Stewart, Commissioner  Date   Authorized Signature _____________________ 
 
DIVISION HISTORICAL RESOURCES   STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, COUNTY OF 
         The foregoing statement was acknowledged before me 
Benjamin H. Wilson,   Date    this  day of  20   
State Historic Preservation Officer            
        Signature of Notary Public Commission Expires 
 
 
Approved as to form, substance and execution: 
  ________________________ 
Office of Attorney General  Date    
 

Page 106 of 157



 EXHIBIT A: SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
A.1. The Grantee agrees to provide and maintain supervision of the project by a person or persons, whose professional 

qualifications meet the criteria of 36 CFR 61 and which have received prior approval of the Division of Historical Resources, 
and to ensure that the grant-assisted work conforms to the applicable Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and Guidelines.  
The Grantee also agrees that work performed under this Agreement shall in all respects conform to high professional 
standards and shall be coordinated with the Division of Historical Resources. 

 
A.2.  It is understood and agreed by the Grantee that costs and/or matching share associated with development of any final products 

which do not conform to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, or which do not meet the appropriate Secretary of the 
Interior's Standards for Planning, Identification, Evaluation and Registration, as determined by the State Historic Preservation 
Officer, shall not be reimbursed. 

 
A.3.  Scope, Products, and Schedule: 

(a) Scope and Products: These shall be as described in, and shall be performed and produced in accordance with, the Project 
Notification for this project (a copy of which is incorporated into this agreement as item A.4), as approved by the National 
Park Service, subject to any subsequent modifications or amendments which are approved in writing by the Division of 
Historical Resources and/or the National Park Service. 

 
 (b) Schedule: Begin date: Pending Contract Execution end date: September 30, 2022 
 

(c) Standards: The applicable Secretary of the Interior's Standards and Guidelines for this contract are those for: Planning, 
Identification, Evaluation and Registration. 
 

A.4.  The Project Notification for this project is incorporated into Exhibit A. 
 
A.5. The Grantee understands and agrees that the project scope of work products, budget, and performance/reporting milestones, 

as approved by the Division of Historical Resources and specified in this Agreement, shall not be changed without prior 
written approval of the Division of Historical Resources. 

 
 
 EXHIBIT B: GRANT PRICE AND METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 
B.1. Compensation to the Grantee for approved project work under this Agreement shall be on a reimbursable matching basis, not 

to exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the allowable costs and matching share incurred by the Grantee in carrying out the 
approved project work during the approved project period. Compensation to the Grantee for its own participation in the 
project shall not include profit, or other increment above cost in the nature of profit.  Work is to be performed by the Grantee 
in conformance with the Scope of Services, as described in Exhibit A above, for federal reimbursement from the Historic 
Preservation Fund by and through the New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources, for an amount not to exceed Five 
Thousand-Two Hundred Dollars ($5,200) subject to: 

 
(a) The Grantee's submission of itemized invoices, and progress reports, on a quarterly basis, in a format specified by the 
Division of Historical Resources; 

 
(b) The Grantee's submission of a Final Project Report which contains a comparison of the projected Scope and Budget to the 
actual Scope and Budget; and 

 
(c) The Grantee's completion of approved project work in a manner satisfactory to the Division of Historical Resources. 

 
B.2. The final payment shall not be less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the total compensation due the Grantee; it shall be 

retained by the Division of Historical Resources until all of the obligations of the Grantee pursuant to this Agreement have 
been completed, all necessary documentation of same has been submitted to and approved by the Division of Historical 
Resources, and all work and products accomplished under this Agreement have been accepted by the Division of 
Historical Resources. 

 

Page 107 of 157



B.3. It is expressly understood and agreed that the Grantee shall compile cost documentation in a form and manner specified by the 
Division of Historical Resources, and that it shall be forwarded to the Division of Historical Resources and retained by the 
Division for state and federal audits. 

 
B.4. Invoices and progress reports shall be submitted to the Division of Historical Resources on a quarterly basis as 

follows: 
    October 31, 2021 
    January 31, 2022 
    April 30, 2022 
    June 30, 2022 Project Completion Deadline 
    September 30, 2022 Final Project Report Due 
 
 
 EXHIBIT C: SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
C.1. The work performed pursuant to this Agreement is to be treated as non-federal matching share for a Historic Preservation 

Fund matching grant-in-aid from the National Park Service of the U.S. Department of the Interior, to the State of New 
Hampshire, by and through the Division of Historical Resources.  Under the terms of the grant, the State of New Hampshire 
and the Division of Historical Resources are administratively responsible for obtaining the Grantee's compliance with all 
terms of the assistance, with the Historic Preservation Fund program policies and procedures. 

 
C.2. The Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, and regulations 

including Title VI, section 504, and with the Americans with Disabilities Act. In addition to the terms detailed in this 
Agreement, all federal requirements governing grants and/or contracts are applicable, including Office of Management and 
Budget Circulars, Revised, A-87 or A-122, A-102 or A-110, and A-128(the Single Audit Act of 1984). The Grantee will 
submit a copy of the Single Audit for the time period of the Grant as soon as the Audit has been completed.  Failure to comply 
with this condition may affect the Contractor’s eligibility to receive future grants. 

 
C.3. The Grantee agrees to be solely responsible for all bills or claims for payment rendered by any sub consultants, associates, or 

others, and for all services and materials employed in its work, and to indemnify and save harmless the Division of Historical 
Resources and all of its officers, agents, employees, and servants, against all suits, claims, or liability of every name and nature 
arising out of or in consequence of the acts or failures to act of the Grantee and its associates, employees, or sub consultants, 
in the performance of the work covered by this Agreement.  No portion of this Agreement shall be understood to waive the 
sovereign immunity of the State of New Hampshire. 

 
C.4. It is specifically agreed between the parties executing this Agreement that it is not intended by any of the provisions of any 

part of the Agreement to create the public or any member thereof a third party beneficiary hereunder, or to authorize any one 
not a party to this Agreement to maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage pursuant to the terms or provisions of 
this Agreement. The duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the parties to this Agreement with respect to third parties shall 
remain as imposed by law. 

 
C.5. The attached document, "Conditions and Assurances for Historic Preservation Fund Projects," as executed by the Grantee, is 

incorporated into Exhibit C.  
 
 
  

Page 108 of 157



Municipality Certification of Authority 
 
 
I, ______________________________ (Name), hereby certify/attest that I am duly elected 

Clerk/Secretary of ________________________________ (Name of Municipality), New Hampshire.  I 

hereby certify the following is a true copy of the resolution adopted during a meeting of the Municipality 

Officers, duly called and held on ________________, 20 ___, at which a quorum of the Municipality 

Officers were present and voting. 

 

RESOLVED:  That ______________________________ (Name and Title of Official 

Signing the Agreement) is duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf 

of _________________________ (Name of Municipality) with the State of New 

Hampshire, acting by and through the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, and 

is further authorized to execute any documents on behalf of this Municipality which may 

be in his/her judgement desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this resolution. 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force 

and effect as of ________________, 20 ___.  I further certify that it is understood that the State of New 

Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the 

position indicated and that they have full authority to bind the Municipality.  This authority remains 

valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this certificate.   

 

DATED: _________________   ATTEST: ___________________________________________ 
  (Secretary/Clerk Signature Completing this Certificate) 

 

STATE OF _______________________ 

COUNTY OF _____________________ 

 
On this the        day of                                , 20 ___, before me                                           , the undersigned 
officer, personally appeared                                                                     , known to me or satisfactorily 
proven to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that he/she 
executed the same for the purposes therein contained.  In witness whereof, I hereunto set me hand and 
official seal: 
 
___________________________________ 
Justice of the Peace / Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 

Page 109 of 157



-

OMB Approval No. 0348-0040 

ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing 
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for 
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503. 

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. 
SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY. 

NOTE:	 Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the 
awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such 
is the case, you will be notified. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance 
and the institutional, managerial and financial capability 
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share 
of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management 
and completion of the project described in this 
application. 

Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General 
of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, 
through any authorized representative, access to and 
the right to examine all records, books, papers, or 
documents related to the award; and will establish a 
proper accounting system in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting standards or agency directives. 

Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from 
using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or 
presents the appearance of personal or organizational 
conflict of interest, or personal gain. 

Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable 
time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding 
agency. 

Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 
1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed 
standards for merit systems for programs funded under 
one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in 
Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of 
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to 
nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: 
(a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color 
or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 

Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) 
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 
U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination 
on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and 
Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, 
relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug 
abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and 
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation 
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health 
Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee 
3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol 
and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as 
amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, 
rental or financing of housing; (i) any other 
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) 
under which application for Federal assistance is being 
made; and, (j) the requirements of any other 
nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the 
application. 

7.	 Will comply, or has already complied, with the 
requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for 
fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or 
whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or 
federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply 
to all interests in real property acquired for project 
purposes regardless of Federal participation in 
purchases. 

8.	 Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the 
Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) 
which limit the political activities of employees whose 
principal employment activities are funded in whole or 
in part with Federal funds. 

Previous Edition Usable Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97) 

Authorized for Local Reproduction Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 

Page 110 of 157



9. 

10. 

11. 

Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act 
(40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract 
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-
333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted 
construction subagreements. 

Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase 
requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster 
Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires 
recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the 
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of 
insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

Will comply with environmental standards which may be 
prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of 
environmental quality control measures under the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and 
Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating 
facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands 
pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in 
floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of 
project consistency with the approved State management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management 
Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of 
Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans 
under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of 
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe 
Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); 
and, (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-
205). 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 
1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting 
components or potential components of the national 
wild and scenic rivers system. 

Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance 
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 
Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 
(identification and protection of historic properties), and 
the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.). 

Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of 
human subjects involved in research, development, and 
related activities supported by this award of assistance. 

Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 
1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et 
seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of 
warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or 
other activities supported by this award of assistance. 

Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning 
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which 
prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or 
rehabilitation of residence structures. 

Will cause to be performed the required financial and 
compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit 
Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, 
"Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations." 

Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other 
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies 
governing this program. 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE 

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION DATE SUBMITTED 

Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97) Back 

Page 111 of 157



NH DIVISION OF HISTORICAL RESOURCES 
19 Pillsbury Street, Second Floor 
CONCORD  NH  03302-2043 
603-271-3483 
FAX 603-271-3433   PROJECT NOTIFICATION 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
PROJECT TITLE: From Bookshelves to the Public  GRANT NUMBER: CLG-P21AS00231-01 
 
AREA AFFECTED BY PROJECT: Amherst   FEDERAL SHARE: 5,200 
        NONFEDERAL SHARE: 4,012 
CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT: 02    TOTAL PROJECT COST: 9,212 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
1. SUBGRANTEE: 
 Name:  Town of Amherst 
 Address:  3 School Street, Amherst, NH 03031 
 Contact Person:  Will Ludt, Amherst Heritage Commission 
 
 
2. PURPOSE:  Encourage the appreciation and preservation of Amherst’s rich heritage through public online maps.  
 
 
 
 
 Products:  Publically accessible online maps and ESRI StoryMap of heritage sites, and public outreach 
 
3. BEGINNING/ENDING DATES: 
 From:  Pending contract execution 
 To:  September 30, 2022 
 
4. No program income will be generated. 
 
5. As the fully authorized representative, I certify that this subgrant will be administered, and work will be performed, 

in accordance with the Historic Preservation Fund grants Manual, and the Secretary of the Interior’s “Standards 
and Guidelines for Planning, Identification, Evaluation, & Registration.” All documentation required by the 
Historic Preservation Fund Grants Manual will be maintained on file for audit and State Program Review purposes.  
All proposed costs for personal compensation charged to the Federal or nonfederal share of this subgrant are within 
the maximum limit proposed by Chapter 13, Section B.34.e of the Historic Preservation Fund Grants Manual.  
These costs have been assessed by knowledgeable SHPO staff and found to be within the normal and customary 
range of charges for similar work in the local labor market, and appear to be appropriate charges for the product 
achieved with grant assistance. 

 
 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------      ----------------------- 
SHPO or Authorized Designee Signature       Date 

Page 112 of 157



Municipality Certification of Authority 
 
 
I, ______________________________ (Name), hereby certify/attest that I am duly elected 

Clerk/Secretary of ________________________________ (Name of Municipality), New Hampshire.  I 

hereby certify the following is a true copy of the resolution adopted during a meeting of the Municipality 

Officers, duly called and held on ________________, 20 ___, at which a quorum of the Municipality 

Officers were present and voting. 

 

RESOLVED:  That ______________________________ (Name and Title of Official 

Signing the Agreement) is duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf 

of _________________________ (Name of Municipality) with the State of New 

Hampshire, acting by and through the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources, and 

is further authorized to execute any documents on behalf of this Municipality which may 

be in his/her judgement desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this resolution. 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force 

and effect as of ________________, 20 ___.  I further certify that it is understood that the State of New 

Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the 

position indicated and that they have full authority to bind the Municipality.  This authority remains 

valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this certificate.   

 

DATED: _________________   ATTEST: ___________________________________________ 
  (Secretary/Clerk Signature Completing this Certificate) 

 

STATE OF _______________________ 

COUNTY OF _____________________ 

 
On this the        day of                                , 20 ___, before me                                           , the undersigned 
officer, personally appeared                                                                     , known to me or satisfactorily 
proven to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that he/she 
executed the same for the purposes therein contained.  In witness whereof, I hereunto set me hand and 
official seal: 
 
___________________________________ 
Justice of the Peace / Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 

Page 113 of 157



-

OMB Approval No. 0348-0040 

ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing 
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for 
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503. 

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. 
SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY. 

NOTE:	 Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the 
awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such 
is the case, you will be notified. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance 
and the institutional, managerial and financial capability 
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share 
of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management 
and completion of the project described in this 
application. 

Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General 
of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, 
through any authorized representative, access to and 
the right to examine all records, books, papers, or 
documents related to the award; and will establish a 
proper accounting system in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting standards or agency directives. 

Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from 
using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or 
presents the appearance of personal or organizational 
conflict of interest, or personal gain. 

Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable 
time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding 
agency. 

Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 
1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed 
standards for merit systems for programs funded under 
one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in 
Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of 
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to 
nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: 
(a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color 
or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 

Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) 
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 
U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination 
on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and 
Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, 
relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug 
abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and 
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation 
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health 
Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee 
3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol 
and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as 
amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, 
rental or financing of housing; (i) any other 
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) 
under which application for Federal assistance is being 
made; and, (j) the requirements of any other 
nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the 
application. 

7.	 Will comply, or has already complied, with the 
requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for 
fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or 
whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or 
federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply 
to all interests in real property acquired for project 
purposes regardless of Federal participation in 
purchases. 

8.	 Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the 
Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) 
which limit the political activities of employees whose 
principal employment activities are funded in whole or 
in part with Federal funds. 

Previous Edition Usable Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97) 

Authorized for Local Reproduction Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 

Page 114 of 157



9. 

10. 

11. 

Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act 
(40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract 
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-
333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted 
construction subagreements. 

Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase 
requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster 
Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires 
recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the 
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of 
insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

Will comply with environmental standards which may be 
prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of 
environmental quality control measures under the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and 
Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating 
facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands 
pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in 
floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of 
project consistency with the approved State management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management 
Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of 
Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans 
under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of 
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe 
Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); 
and, (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-
205). 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 
1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting 
components or potential components of the national 
wild and scenic rivers system. 

Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance 
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 
Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 
(identification and protection of historic properties), and 
the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.). 

Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of 
human subjects involved in research, development, and 
related activities supported by this award of assistance. 

Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 
1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et 
seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of 
warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or 
other activities supported by this award of assistance. 

Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning 
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which 
prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or 
rehabilitation of residence structures. 

Will cause to be performed the required financial and 
compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit 
Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, 
"Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations." 

Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other 
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies 
governing this program. 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE 

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION DATE SUBMITTED 

Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97) Back 

Page 115 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Garage Doors Department: Public Works
Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: Eric Hahn

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
This bid is for new garage doors for the mechanic's garage.   DPW received two bids, 
one of which was rejected as improperly submitted. It was sent via email.  It was the 
higher of the two bids.    DPW posted the bid on ConstructionSummary.com, town 
website and mailed to 8 companies.  DPW followed up for the low response rate as 
noted on the award sheet.  The funds are within our budget and within the estimated 
cost of the doors and are insulated.   
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
$25,600 within Buildings and Grounds existing budget. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
Award the bid to Overhead Doors of Manchester NH.
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to award the fabrication and installation of the new mechanics' garage doors, to 
Overhead Doors of Manchester for the amount of $25,600 and to authorize the town 
admistrator to sign all relevent documentation. 
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 01-22 Garage Door award Forms
2. 01-22 steel building ov door bid 7-2-21
3. Overhead Door Company of Manchester (2)

Page 116 of 157

http://www.constructionsummary.com/


TOWN OF AMHERST
         

Town Department:   DPW Date:  July 30, 2021
Line Item: 01-4194-40-2430 Budget Amount: $125,000

Bid #: 01-22 Item: Overhead Doors Date Bid To Be Awarded:  August 23, 2021

 VENDOR Name and Address    PRICE/UNIT    TOTAL                OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
                                                                   Interest Rate                                                                 Labor Shortage prevented bid submission

8.  Seacoast Overhead Door
     Farmington NH                                                                                        NO BID       

Recommend bid be awarded to:  
                                                                                                                                         Signature of Town Administrator / Date

Overhead Door Company of Manchester, NH.

Posted on Construction Summary, (Construction Summary - construction reports, building reports, new hampshire construction, 
maine construction, vermont construction), Town Website and mailed to 8 local companies. 

Please attach to this request a copy of the specifications and proposal from the lowest qualified bidder.
Please forward, for review purposes, a copy of bids in excess of $10,000.00 to the Board of Selectmen at least one week prior to a vote of the 
Board of Selectmen.  

1.   C. Nutter Garage Doors
      Manchester NH                                                                                   No Bid                                                                          
2.   Door UP
      Manchester NH                                                                                    NO BID                                                     

            
                   

3.   Overhead Door Company of Manchester
      Manchester NH                                                                                 $25,600.00

Fabricates own doors.    
                       
                   

4.   Fimbel Paunet Door
      Manchester NH                                                                                     NO BID Bid rejected, improper 

submittal,  $28,147.58

                   
.

                     
5.   Raynor Door Authority
      Manchester NH                                                                                     NO BID Not Intentional, misplaced 
6   JA Overhead Doors
       Derry NH                                                                                              NO BID                                                 Away on Vacation
7.  Lizzys Garage Doors
     Nashua NH                                                                                             NO BID                                                Wasn’t Interested

Page 117 of 157

http://www.constructionsummary.com/
http://www.constructionsummary.com/


 1 

  

 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
22 Dodge Road 

Amherst, NH  03031 
Tel. (603) 673-2317     Fax (603) 249-8857 

 
ehahn@amherstnh.gov 

 

 
BID NUMBER #01-22   

  

Steel Building Overhead Doors 
 

INVITATION TO BID 
 

The Town of Amherst, NH is inviting proposals for contract at the Public Works Office, 22 
Dodge Road, Amherst, New Hampshire, for furnishing & installing four (4) NEW 
overhead garage doors in our new steel building.  The bid shall provide a lump sum price 
for furnishing/installing the NEW overhead garage doors.  The bid shall also list all applicable 
warranties. 
 
Bidding Documents may be obtained, at no charge, at the Public Works Office at 22 Dodge 
Road in Amherst, NH.  Review of the steel building overhead door locations can be arranged 
by appointment with the Director of Public Works or his designee by calling our office at 603-
673-2317. 
 
Bids will be received at the Amherst Town Hall, 2 Main Street, Amherst, NH, until 12 PM on 
Friday, July 30, 2021.  Shortly thereafter, bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at any 
available office or conference room, Public Works, 22 Dodge Rd.  Award will be by the Board 
of Selectmen at a regular board meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
Each bid must be accompanied by BID SECURITY, payable to the Town of 

Amherst, in the amount of FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 118 of 157



 2 

Town of Amherst NH 
Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 
Amherst, NH 03031 

July 2, 2021 
BID NUMBER #01-22  

  
 

CONTRACTOR’S PROPOSAL 
 

To: Town of Amherst, NH: 

 
The undersigned, as a lawfully authorized agent for the below named Bidder/Contractor, has carefully examined 

the Proposal form of this Bid, to be known as “Town of Amherst Bid # 01-22 Steel Building Overhead 
Garage Doors” with the General Provisions, Specifications and other bid documents and binds himself/herself 

and his/her company on award to them by the Board of Selectmen to execute a contract agreement under this 

Proposal in accordance with such award, on such form and in such manner as is prescribed by the Town and to 
provide all necessary equipment, labor, materials and other items or services needed to perform all the 

requirements for furnishing and installing four garage doors, in Amherst, NH for the following Lump Sum Price 
with applicable warranties: 

 

Furnishment & Installation of four (4) NEW garage doors: 
 
 

Lump Sum ($): ______________________________________________ ($)________________ 
       (Written)    (Figure) 

 
 

Warranty: 
 
Type(s) & Duration(s): 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 
 

     
Print Bidder/Contractor’s Name 

 

             
Print Representative’s Name and Title  Representative’s Signature 

 
             

Street      City, State and Zip Code 

 
             

Telephone and FAX Number   Date 
 

Person signing proposal must be a person in your company authorized to sign a Contract with the  
 

Town of Amherst, NH. 

Page 119 of 157



 3 

Town of Amherst NH 
Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 
Amherst, NH 03031 

 July 2, 2021 
AGREEMENT 

 
This AGREEMENT is made August_________, 2021, BETWEEN the Owner:  Town of Amherst 

 
and the Contractor:          for the  

 

following Project: “Town of Amherst Bid # 01-22 Steel Building Overhead Doors.” 
 

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 

THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

The contractor shall complete the Work described in the Contract Documents for the project.  The Contract 
documents consist of: 

 
1) Invitation to Bid, dated July 2, 2021. 

2) Contractor’s Proposal, dated July 2, 2021. 

3) Contract Agreement, dated July 2, 2021. 
4) General Provisions, dated July 2, 2021. 

5) Payment Security, (if necessary). 
6) Specifications, dated July 2, 2021. 

7)   Any issued addenda. 

8)   This agreement signed by the Owner and the Contractor. 
9)   Written change orders or orders for minor changes in the Work issued after execution of this 

Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE II 

DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION DATE 
 

The date of commencement shall be the date of this Agreement.  The Contractor shall substantially complete the 
Work not later than September 17, 2021, subject to adjustment by Change Order. 

 
ARTICLE III 

CONTRACT SUM 
 

Subject to additions and deductions by Change Order, the Contract Sum per unit is:  

 
Furnishment & Installation of four (4) new overhead doors:    

 
$________________________________________________________________________________  

(figure) 
 

Furnishment & Installation of four (4) new overhead doors:    

 
$________________________________________________________________________________  

(written words) 
 

Page 120 of 157



 4 

 
 

ARTICLE IV 
PAYMENT 

 

Based on the Contractor’s Application for Payment for complete work, certified by the Owner or the Owner’s 

Agent, the Owner shall pay the Contractor as follows: 
 

 1.  Submittals shall be for completed work only. 

 2.  Submittals shall be for no more than two times in any calendar month. 
3.  Work shall be certified, and payment made, on or within 15 days of the approved amount of the     

invoice. 
 4.  Payment Security may be required for bids in excess of $25,000. 

 

ARTICLE V 

INSURANCE 
 

The Contractor shall provide satisfactory evidence of both Contractor’s Liability and Workers Compensation 

Insurance. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

There shall be a project meeting between the Owner and the Contractor prior to start date. 

This twelve-page Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above (page 3). 

 
OWNER, by its Selectmen    CONTRACTOR 

 
             
                   Peter Lyon, Chair            (Signature of Company Executive) 
 
           _______ 
               Dwight Brew, Vice Chair              Printed name, title, and address 
             
                _____   ____________________________________  

     Reed Panasiti, clerk          Telephone Number 
 

_____________________________________              ____________________________________ 
   Thomas Grella, Member                        Fax line number 
 
_____________________________________ 
               John D’Angelo, Member 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 121 of 157



 5 

Town of Amherst NH 
Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 
Amherst, NH 03031 

 

July 2, 2021 

 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 

1. Each bid shall be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly identified with the Bidder’s name and marked “Town 
of Amherst Bid # 01-22 Steel Building Overhead Doors” and will be received at the Amherst Town 
Hall, 2 Main Street, Amherst, NH until 12 PM, Friday, July 30, 2021.   

 
2. Shortly thereafter, bids will be publicly opened and read aloud from any available office or conference room, 

Public Works, 22 Dodge Road, Amherst, NH.  Bids when opened shall be irrevocable for a period of thirty (30) 

calendar days following bid-opening date.  Following a review of the bids by staff, the Board of Selectmen will 
award the bid at a regular public meeting. 

 
3. The Town expressly reserves the right to reject any or all bids as the Board of Selectmen may determine and 

to waive defects in form of minor irregularities where the best interest of the Town would be served. 
 

4. The bid price shall not include Federal or State taxes.  If such are applicable, the successful Bidder shall 

furnish the Town with the necessary tax-exempt forms in triplicate upon submission of the invoice. 
 

5. The Bidder shall not, either directly or indirectly, enter into any agreement, participate in any collusion, or 
otherwise take any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with this bid. 

 

6. The successful Bidder shall not use the name of the Town in any advertising without first obtaining written 
permission from the Board of Selectmen. 

 
7. Any change to the provisions or specifications of this Bid shall be made by written addendum issued no later 

than four (4) working days prior to the bid opening date.  Prospective Bidders shall have complete 

responsibility for being aware of any and all addenda. 
 

8. The bidder shall observe and comply with all applicable Federal and State Laws and Regulations, Town 
Ordinances and the Rules and Regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over the project, and these 

shall apply to the contract the same as though written out herein in full, and the Contractor shall indemnify 
the Town and its representatives against any claim or liability arising from or based on any such law, 

ordinance, rules and regulation by themselves or by their employees.  The successful Bidder shall notify the 

Town immediately if these bid documents are at variance with any laws or regulations. 
 

9. The Town may make such investigations as it may deem necessary to determine the ability of the bidder to 
perform the services, and the bidder shall furnish the Town all such information for this purpose that the 

Town may request.  The Town reserves the right to reject any bid if the evidence submitted by, or 

investigation of, such bidder fails to satisfy the Town that such bidder is properly qualified to carry out the 
obligations of the contract and to complete the work contemplated therein. 

 
10. The Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits and licenses for this work in accordance with the bid 

documents, contract and specifications required for a complete and finished job.   
 

11. The Contractor shall be responsible for all damage to property, or injury to persons, arising out of their 

actions or failure to act.  They shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Amherst from any and all 

Page 122 of 157



 6 

demands, suits or judgments arising in conjunction with or as a result of the Contractor’s performance of this 
contract.   

 
12. The bidder shall, in the employment of labor, comply with the laws of the State of New Hampshire, including 

but not limited to Chapter 275, RSA, as amended, “Hours of Labor”, Chapter 279, RSA, as amended, 

“Minimum Wage Law”. 
 

13. The bidder shall take out and maintain at their own expense insurance against damages arising from injury to 
their employees in accordance with Chapter 281, RSA, as amended, “Worker’s Compensation Acts” and from 

claims for damages because of bodily injury including death and for all property damages, including without 
limitations, damage to buildings, which might arise from and during operations under this contract, whether 

such operations be by themselves or by any subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either 

of them.  The Contractor shall insure the activities of their subcontractors in their own policy, for 
subcontractors Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance and Vehicle Liability Insurance of the types 

and amounts as herein specified.  Approval of insurance by the Town shall not relieve the Liability of the 
Contractor there under.  Certificates from the insurance companies as to the amount and type of coverage, 

terms of the policy, etc. shall be filed with the Selectmen’s Office in single copy.   

 
A.  COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY INSURANCE.  The Contractor shall take out and 

maintain during the life of this Contract the statutory Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability 
Insurance for all of their employees to be engaged in work on the project under this Contract and, in 

case any such work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide 
Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance for all work of the latter’s employees to be 

engaged in such work. 

 
B.  BODILY INJURY LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY.  The Contractor shall take out and 

maintain during the life of this Contract such Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability 
Insurance and Automobile Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability Insurance as shall 

protect them and any subcontractors performing work covered by the Contract from claims for 

damages for personal injury, including accidental death, as well as claims for Property Damage which 
may arise from operations under this Contract, whether such operations be by themselves or by the 

subcontractor or by anyone directly and/or indirectly employed by either of them, and the amount of 
insurance shall not be less than: 

 

(1) Bodily Injury Liability Insurance, in an amount not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($500,000) for injuries, including wrongful death to any one person and subject to the same 

limits for each person in an amount not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) 
on account of one accident. 

 
(2) Property Damage Insurance in an amount not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($500,000) for damages on account of one accident or all accidents. 

 
C.  TOWN OF AMHERST’S PROTECTIVE LIABILITY INSURANCE.  The Contractor shall name the Town of 

Amherst as one of the insured on all policies required, except Worker’s Compensation. 
 

D.  All policies and certificates of insurance shall carry a ten (10) day notice of cancellation or change in 

expiration and notice of such cancellation or change in expiration shall be sent to the Board of 
Selectmen. 

 
14. The bidder is to submit Proposal on the attached Bid Form of Unit Prices. 

 
15. The successful bidder shall execute and deliver the contract within ten (10) calendar days to the Town. 

 

Page 123 of 157



 7 

16. Work on this project shall commence after signing of the contract and shall be completed in its entirety on or 
before September 17, 2021.  

 
17. The successful bidder, upon their failure or refusal to execute and deliver the Contract and security, if 

required, within ten (10) calendar days after they have received notice of the acceptance of their bid, shall 

forfeit to the Town, as liquidated damages for such failure or refusal, the $500.00 security deposited with 
their bid. 

 
18. The bidder will guarantee the work and materials and the work and the materials of all subcontractors for a 

period of one (1) year from the date of acceptance of the work by the Town and agree to leave the work in 
perfect order at completion.  Neither the final certificate of payment nor any provision in the Contract 

documents shall relieve them of responsibility for negligence, or faulty materials, or workmanship within the 

extent and period provided by law, and upon written notice they shall remedy any defaults due thereto and 
pay all expenses for any damage to work resulting therefrom.  It is hereby specifically agreed and understood 

that this guarantee shall not include any cause or causes other than defective work or materials.  It is further 
understood that the Board of Selectmen shall be the final judge as to whether or not any defect is a defect in 

workmanship and/or materials, which is the bidder’s responsibility. 

 
19. The Contract Documents shall include the “Invitation to Bid”, “Contractor’s Proposal”, “General Provisions”, 

“Payment Bond” (if necessary), “Specifications”, any issued addenda, any “Change Orders”, and the final 
executed “Contract Agreement”. 

 
The intent of these documents is to include all labor, materials, appliances and 

services of every kind necessary for the proper execution of the work and the terms 

and conditions of payment thereof. 
 

The documents are to be considered as one, and whatever is called for by any one of 
the documents shall be as binding as if called for by all. 

 

20. A complete understanding of the conditions as they exist is required by a careful personal examination of the 
work at the site.  The Contractor shall also carefully examine the specifications and the Contract forms of the 

work contemplated.  The Contractor shall not, at any time after the execution of the Contract, set up any 
claims whatsoever based upon insufficient data or incorrectly assumed conditions, nor shall it claim any 

misunderstanding in regard to the nature, conditions, or character of the work to be performed under this 

contract, and it shall assume all risks resulting from any change in the conditions which may occur during the 
progress of the work. 

 

21. The Town shall make payment on account of the Contract as follows:  The Contractor shall invoice the Town 

for the work completed.  After receipt of the Contractor’s invoice by the Town, the Town’s agent shall inspect 
the premises and if the work has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Town will 

make payment on or within fifteen (15) days of the approved amount of the invoice.  Before final payment is 
made to the Contractor, it shall submit evidence satisfactory to the Board of Selectmen that all payrolls, 

material bills, and other indebtedness connected with the work have been paid. 
 

22. After execution of the Contract, there shall be no changes in the Bid Documents except by a written 

amendment executed in the same manner as the Contract or by Change Order as described below: 
 
 

CHANGE ORDERS: 
 

A.  The Town, without invalidating the Contract, may order changes in the work within the general scope 

of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, the Contract sum and the 
Contract time being adjusted accordingly.  All such changes in the work shall be executed under the 

applicable conditions of the Contract Documents. 

Page 124 of 157



 8 

 

B.  A change order is a written order to the Contractor signed by the Board of Selectmen and the 

Contractor, after execution of the Contract, authorizing a change in the work and/or an adjustment in 
the Contract sum and/or in the Contract time. 

 

C.  The terms of any change order shall be mutually agreed to by the Contractor and the Board of 

Selectmen. 
 

23. The entire work contemplated by the Contract shall be under the supervision of the Board of Selectmen, or 

their agents so designated, and all questions concerning the prosecution of the work shall be referred to and 
decided by them. 

 

24. DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME.  It is an essential part of the Contract that the 

Contractor shall perform fully, entirely and in an acceptable manner, the work under Contract within the time 
stated in the Contract.  If the Contractor finds it impossible for reasons beyond its control to complete the 

work within the Contract time, it shall make a written request to the Public Works Director for an extension of 
time setting forth the reasons which it believes will justify the granting of its request.  The Contractor’s plea 

that insufficient time was specified is not a valid reason for extension of time.  If the Board of Selectmen 

finds that the work was delayed because of conditions beyond the control and without the fault of the 
Contractor, including but not limited to acts of God, utility relocations, strikes, delays in the delivery of critical 

materials, and work requiring specialists for whose starting time a reasonable latitude must be allowed, the 
Board of Selectmen may extend the time for completion in such amount as conditions justify.  When 

extension of the Contract time is required due to delays in the delivery of critical materials, sufficient evidence 

must be furnished to the Town at the time the delay occurs showing that such delay results from the 
materials being unavailable by reason of unusual market conditions such as an industry-wide strike, natural 

disaster or an area-wide shortage which arises after bids are taken and which prevents the procurement of 
materials within the allowable time of limitations.  Delays due to slow delivery from a source of supply when 

the required material is available elsewhere will not be considered as justification for an extension of time. 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME.  For each day that any work shall remain uncompleted after the 

Contract time specified for completion of the work, including extensions, the fixed daily charge 
specified below will be deducted from any money due the Contractor, not as a penalty, but as 

liquidated damages.  Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the work or any part of it after 
the time fixed for its completion, or after the date to which the time for completion may have been 

extended, will in no way operate as a waiver on the part of the Town of any of its rights under the 

Contract.  The Board of Selectmen may waive such portions of the liquidated damages as may occur 
after the work is in condition for safe and convenient use.  The fixed, agreed liquidated damages 

shall be $500.00 per day. 
 

The Town may withhold any amount of money otherwise due the Contractor to offset such liquidated 

damage and the Contractor and its SURETY shall be liable to the Town for all additional liquidated 
damages as provided herein. 

 
25. ASSIGNMENT.  The contractor shall not assign, sublet, or transfer its interests in this agreement without 

written consent of the Town of Amherst.  
 

26. In determining the successful bidder, in addition to price, the following shall be considered: 

 
a. The ability and skill of the bidder to perform the contract; 

b. Whether the bidder can perform the contract promptly without delay or interference; 
c. The character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience, and efficiency of the bidder; and 

d. The quality of performance of previous contracts for services. 

 

 

Page 125 of 157



 9 

Town of Amherst NH 
Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 
Amherst, NH 03031 

July 2, 2021 

Payment Bond 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Contractor) 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Address of Contractor)    

 

a _________________________________________________ , hereinafter called Principal 
(Corporation, Partnership, or Individual)  

 

and __________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Surety) 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Address of Surety) 

 

Hereinafter called Surety, are held, and firmly bound unto: 

  

Town of Amherst 

2 Main Street 

Amherst, NH 03031 

 

Hereinafter called the Owner and unto all persons, firms, and corporations, who or which may  

furnish labor or materials to perform Work as described under the contract and to their  

successors, heirs and assigns, in the total aggregate penal sum of________________________ dollars 

($_______________), in lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum and truly to be 

made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, 

firmly by these presents. 
 

 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a 

certain Agreement with the OWNER, dated the ___________day of ___August____ 2021, a copy of which is 

hereto attached and made a part hereof for:  
 

Town of Amherst Bid # 01-22 Steel Building Overhead Doors 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms, and corporations 

furnishing materials for or performing labor in the prosecution of the WORK provided for in such 

Agreement, and any authorized extension or modifications thereof, including all amounts due for materials, 

lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment and tools, consumed or used in connection with 

the execution of such WORK, and  

 
 

for all labor cost incurred in such Work including subcontractors, and to any mechanic or material man lien 

holder whether it acquires its lien by operation of State or Federal Law; then this obligation shall be void; 

otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 

Page 126 of 157



 10 

 

PROVIDED, that beneficiaries or claimants hereunder shall be limited to the subcontractors, and persons, 

firms, and corporations having a direct contract with the PRINCIPAL or its SUBCONTRACTORS. 

 

PROVIDED FURTHER, that the said Surety for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no 

charge, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the WORK to be performed 

there under or the SPECIFICATIONS accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this 

BOND and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alterations or additions to the 

term of the contract or to the WORK or to the SPECIFICATIONS. 

 

PROVIDED, FURTHER that no suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant: (a) Unless 

claimant, other than one having a direct contact with the Principal shall have given written notice to any 

two of the following:  The PRINCIPAL, the OWNER, or the SURETY above named within ninety (90) days 

after such claimant did or performed the last of the work or labor, or furnished the last of the materials for 

which said claim is made, starting with substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the party 

to whom the materials were furnished, or for whom the work or labor was done or performed. Such notice 

shall be served by mailing the same by registered mail or certified mail, postage prepaid, in an envelope 

addressed to the PRINCIPAL, OWNER, or SURETY, at any place where an office is regularly maintained 

for the transaction business, or served in any manner in which legal process may be served in the state in 

which the aforesaid project is located, save that such service need not be made by a public officer. (b) After 

the expiration of one (1) year following the date on which PRINCIPAL ceased work on said CONTRACT, it 

being understood, however that if any limitation embodied in the BOND is prohibited by any law controlling 

the construction hereof, such limitation shall be deemed to be amended so as to be equal to the minimum 

period of limitation permitted by such law. 

 

PROVIDED, FURTHER that it is expressly agreed that this BOND shall be deemed amended automatically 

and immediately, without formal and separate amendments hereto, upon amendment to the Contract not 

increasing the contract price more than 20 percent, so as to bind the PRINCIPAL and the SURETY to the 

full and faithful performance of the Contract as so amended. The term “Amendment”, wherever used in this 

BOND and whether referring to this BOND, or the Contract Documents shall include any alteration, 

addition, extension, or modifications of any character whatsoever. 

 

PROVIDED, FURTHER that no final settlement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR shall abridge 

the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied. 

 

 
 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in three counterparts, each one of which shall be 

deemed an original, this _________ day of ______August______ 2021. 

 

 

ATTEST:       __________________________________ 
         (Principal) 

 

By:    _________________________________ 
   (Principal) Secretary 

 

 

(SEAL) 

BY: ___________________________________ 

Page 127 of 157



 11 

 

___________________________________ 
         (Address) 

___________________________________ 

 

By:  __________________________________   ___________________________________ 
  Witness as to Principal 

 

        __________________________________ 
          (Address) 

 

 

__________________________________ 
         (Surety) 

 

ATTEST:            BY:  __________________________________ 
         Attorney-in-Fact 

 

By __________________________________    __________________________________ 
  Witness to Surety      (Address) 

 

_____________________________________             __________________________________ 

 

 

_____________________________________    __________________________________ 
  (Address)  

 

 

NOTE: Date of BOND must not be prior to date of Contract. 

If CONTRACTOR is partnership, all partners should execute BOND. 

 

 

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury Department’s most 

current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the State of New 

Hampshire. 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 128 of 157



 12 

Town of Amherst NH 
Department of Public Works 

22 Dodge Road 
Amherst, NH 03031 

July 2, 2021 
 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 

Steel Building Overhead Doors 
 

Specifications: 
 
 

1) All four rough door openings measure sixteen (16’) feet wide and fourteen (14’) feet 
tall.   
 

2) The individual garage door panels shall be made of a hot-dipped galvanized outer 
skin with a foam insulation inner core.  The insulation shall be sufficient to achieve a 
minimum insulation value of R = 10.   

 
3) All four doors shall be outfitted and opened with 1/2HP electric door openers and 

auxillary chain-hoists.   
 

4) All four doors shall be capable of being opened by remote control.  Two (2) four-
channel remote controls shall be included.   

 
5) All four doors shall be guided by a track that follows the angled interior roofline of 

the building for added headspace above the floor.   
 

6) All four overhead doors shall be outfitted with appropriate weather-stripping as to 
ensure a weather-tight seal when in the fully closed position.  

 
7) All four doors shall have a row of sight-windows located in the third door panel as 

measured from the floor. 
1.  

Page 129 of 157



Page 130 of 157



Page 131 of 157



Page 132 of 157



Page 133 of 157



Page 134 of 157



Page 135 of 157



Page 136 of 157



Page 137 of 157



Page 138 of 157



Page 139 of 157



Page 140 of 157



Page 141 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: COVID-19 Task Force Update Department: Fire Rescue
Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: Matt Conley

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
On July 27th, the CDC updated its recommendations for those fully vaccinated in response 
to the increase in positive COVID 19 cases in those fully vaccinated.
 
A site tracking community transmission was shared, https://covid.cdc.gov/covid-data-
tracker/#county-view , which tracks the rate of positive cases by county for each US State. 
Four levels are represented: Low, Moderate, Substantial and High. The CDC is 
recommending the wearing of indoor masks in counties that have a transmission rate that is 
within either Substantial or High categories.
 
While Hillsborough County was at a Moderate level on August 2, we currently fall within the 
level of Substantial, with the entire state at either the Substantial or High levels.
 
The COVID 19 Taskforce met via Zoom on Monday August 9 and are recommending to the 
Board of Selectmen that we set a policy of requesting masks for anyone not able to 
maintain 6 feet of social distance from others when inside a Town building, as long as our 
transmission rate falls within either Substantial or High categories. We will continue to 
request those who are not vaccinated to wear a mask when inside a Town building. 
 
We recommend that the necessary steps be taken to improve the air exchange rate in the 
Barbara Landry Meeting Room to the minimum standard that is safe for both employees, 
board members and residents. 
 
We also reiterate to all employees and to those entering town buildings the importance of 
participating in the Health Screening before entering the workplace each day and remaining 
at home if they are experiencing any new or unusual symptoms that are on the list of those 
of COVID 19.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
None
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
None
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:

Page 142 of 157

https://covid.cdc.gov/covid-data-tracker/#county-view
https://covid.cdc.gov/covid-data-tracker/#county-view


The recommendation is for the Board of Selectmen to accept the proposed update from 
the COVID-19 Task Force. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to have the Board of Selectmen accept the recommendation from the COVID-19 
Task Force as it pertains to protecting the employees and the public that enter Town 
Buildings from COVID-19. 
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
None

Page 143 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Baboosic Lake Community Septic 
Warrants

Department: Tax Collector

Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: Gail Stout

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The Baboosic Lake Community Septic Warrants are enclosed for the Board's approval 
and signature.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
To approve and sign.
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
I move to approve and sign the Baboosic Lake Community Septic Warrant due for 
October 1, 2021 as follows:
Phase I                  $ 2,030.52
Phase II                 $ 5,455.24
Phase III                $ 6,686.35
Phase IV                $ 4,766.38
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Baboosic Lake Community Septic Warrants October 2021 public
2. Baboosic Lake Community Septic Warrants Confidential

Page 144 of 157



Page 145 of 157



Page 146 of 157



Page 147 of 157



Page 148 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Assessing Department: Assessing
Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:

A. PA-16 Reimbursement to Towns and Cities

The subject property is a vacant 18-acre parcel off of Merrimack Road. The property is 
under State ownership and is exempt. In order for the town to be reimbursed for a 
portion of the lost tax revenue, the attached PA-16 form will need to be signed.

 Suggested Motion:

 Our Assessor has completed the PA-16 Reimbursement form and therefore, I move to 
approve and sign the PA-16 for Map 004 and Lot 068-000.

B. Veteran Tax Credit

I have reviewed the attached Veteran Tax Credit Application provided and the applicant 
qualifies for the Tax Credit under RSA 72:28 for the 2022 tax year.
 
Suggested Motion:
 
The application has been reviewed by our assessor and our assessor recommends 
granting this credit. Therefore, I move to approve the Veteran Tax Credit for tax year 
2022 in the amount of $500 for Map 004, Lot 146-001.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

Page 149 of 157



ATTACHMENTS:
1. Item A PA-16 Reimbursement
2. Item B Veteran Tax Credit

Page 150 of 157



Page 151 of 157



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: AP, Payroll and Minutes Department: Finance Department
Meeting Date: August 23, 2021 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
Payroll
     AP1~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of $4,870.77 
dated June 3, 2021, subject to review and audit.

     AP2~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of 52,889.39 
dated August 10, 2021, subject to review and audit.

     AP3~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of 
$262,862.81 dated August 12, 2021, subject to review and audit.
 
 Accounts Payable
 
  AP4 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$275,998.15 dated August 17, 2021, subject to review and audit.
   
  Minutes
   ~ I move to approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of August 9, 2021.

 
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2021.08.09 BOS MINUTES, DRAFT 

Page 152 of 157



Page 153 of 157



 
 
 
 
 

Town of Amherst, NH 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 

Barbara Landry Meeting Room 

2 Main Street 

Monday, August 9, 2021, 6:30PM 
 

1. Call to Order 1 

Chairman Peter Lyon called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 2 

 3 

Attendees: Chairman Peter Lyon, Selectman Dwight Brew, Selectman John D’Angelo, 4 

Selectman Danielle Pray, and Selectman Tom Grella. 5 

Also present: Town Administrator Dean Shankle, and Recording Secretary Kristan Patenaude 6 

(remote) 7 

 8 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Assistant Department of Public Works Director Eric 9 

Slosek 10 

 11 

3.   Citizen’s Forum – none. 12 

 13 

4. Scheduled Appointments 14 

4.1.  Senator Gary Daniels, legislative updates  15 

Chairman Lyon explained that Senator Daniels could not attend this evening and will present 16 

at a later date. 17 

 18 

5. Administration 19 

5.1 Administrative Updates 20 

Town Administrator Shankle stated that he and Tax Collector, Gail Stout, made a video to 21 

explain the revaluation process to the public. This was placed on the Town website and 22 

Selectman Pray also posted it on Facebook. 23 

 24 

Town Administrator Shankle stated that last year 149 recipients in Amherst received 25 

$7,489,171.16 through the GOFERR program. 26 

 27 

He noted that tomorrow morning NRPC will hold a meeting regarding possible areas of 28 

development in Town for mapping purposes. He also noted that the Town has opted into the 29 

electricity aggregation of towns through NRPC again this year. 30 

 31 

Town Administrator stated that he will be helping with the Zoom meetings for the Bicycle & 32 

Pedestrian Advisory Committee and Heritage Commission this week.  33 

 34 

He stated that the Board is supposed to review the Town’s Impact Fee Ordinance annually. He 35 

felt that this review should be conducted in conjunction with the Capital Improvements 36 

Program update, as the Board should take into consideration any updates to the Capital 37 

Improvements Plan when setting the impact fee rates. 38 

Page 154 of 157



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.08.09 

 PAGE 2 OF 4 

 

 39 

In response to a question from Selectman Grella, Town Administrator Shankle stated that 40 

some upgrades have been done to the technology used at Town Hall, but more are needed. It 41 

is possible to use some of the money from the Town’s franchise fees to do these upgrades. 42 

The Town may also want to consider a traveling system in case more Planning Board 43 

meetings need to be moved to the Souhegan High School due to potential number of 44 

attendees. 45 

 46 

6. Staff Reports 47 

6.1  Cruiser Computer Purchase 48 

Police Chief Mark Reams stated that this is the third year of a three-year plan to upgrade the 49 

cruiser computer equipment. The price has increased approximately 7% from last year. 50 

 51 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman Brew to award the 52 

bid in the amount of $13,099.25 to Patrol PC for the purchase of replacement police cruiser 53 

computer equipment. 54 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 55 

 56 

 6.2 Forestry Vehicle Acquisition 57 

Fire Rescue Chief Matt Conley explained that this acquisition is for a 2002 military specific 58 

vehicle with 11,000 miles. This will aid in replacing an existing vehicle with one 20 years 59 

newer. It will also give the Department a vehicle that is less prone to getting stuck, and it will 60 

replace the last standard vehicle on the force. Per an agreement with the State Division of 61 

Forests and Lands, the Department must paint the vehicle within six months. The Department 62 

is going to try to do as much of the necessary work on the vehicle itself. The water tank and 63 

pumper will need to be moved onto this vehicle. 64 

 65 

In response to a question from Selectman D’Angelo, Chief Conley stated that he is quite 66 

confident that this vehicle will work well, even though it is 19 years old.  67 

 68 

In response to a question from Selectman Pray, Chief Conley stated that he is unsure yet of 69 

the market value of the vehicle that this will replace. He is anticipating that the Town will 70 

have this vehicle for the life of the vehicle. 71 

 72 

Selectman Brew noted that this vehicle is 20 years newer than the one it will replace and only 73 

has 11,000 miles on it. 74 

 75 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 76 

approve the acquisition of this 2002 Military Specific Truck for Amherst Fire Rescue 77 

at the recommendation of Chief Matthew Conley.  78 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 79 

 80 
 6.3 DPW Electrical Upgrade and Electric to new mechanic’s garage  81 

DPW Director Eric Hahn stated that the new mechanic’s garage needs it’s electrical service 82 

installed. In order to consolidate costs, this was put out to bid jointly with upgrade work to be 83 

done in the existing garage. It will also put both on the emergency generator. 84 

 85 

Page 155 of 157



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.08.09 

 PAGE 3 OF 4 

 

In response to a question from Selectman D’Angelo, Eric Hahn stated that there will be 86 

approximately 50-60 extra amps of capacity. These projects will take approximately 2-3 87 

weeks to complete.  88 

 89 

In response to a question from Selectman Pray, Eric Hahn stated that these items were already 90 

included in the budget. 91 

 92 

In response to a question from Selectman Grella, Eric Hahn explained that he is 93 

recommending Boisvert Electric for this work, as the company is very familiar with the 94 

current system.  95 

 96 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman Brew to award 97 

LBA Inc. bid 02-22 for $40,950 to install the electrical wiring and service upgrade for the 98 

DPW equipment bays and mechanic’s garage. 99 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously.  100 

 101 

 6.4 New Hire, Accountant 102 

Laurie May, Finance Director, explained that the Accountant position was advertised through 103 

the NHMA system and on Indeed.com. Eight applicants were offered interviews: only four 104 

responded. Based on her background and interview, Pamela-Rae Lindof was selected as the 105 

top candidate. She has all requirements listed in the job description. 106 

 107 

In response to a question from Selectman Brew, Laurie May stated that she and Jennifer 108 

Stover initially interviewed Pamela-Rae Lindof, and Town Administrator Shankle secondarily 109 

interviewed her. 110 

 111 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 112 

approve the hiring of Pamela-Rae Lindof as Accountant in the Finance Department. 113 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 114 

 115 

7. Approvals 116 

7.1 AP, Payroll and Minutes Approves 117 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 118 

approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of $243,512.92 dated July 29, 2021, 119 

subject to review and audit. 120 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 121 

 122 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 123 

approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $852,239.07 dated August 124 

3, 2021, subject to review and audit.  125 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 126 

 127 
A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 128 

approve one (1) FY21Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $21,113.74 dated August 3, 129 

2021, subject to review and audit. 130 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 131 

 132 

Page 156 of 157



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.08.09 

 PAGE 4 OF 4 

 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 133 

approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of July 26, 2021, as presented. 134 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 135 

 136 

8. Action Items 137 

The Board reviewed its action items. 138 

 139 

9. Old/New Business 140 

Selectman Brew explained that the Planning Board meeting last week was held at the 141 

Souhegan High School. Thanks to a lot of work from Town staff and staff from the High 142 

School, the meeting was able to be held remotely via Zoom as well. 143 

 144 

Chairman Lyon stated that he hopes the Board will be able to appoint people to the Open 145 

Space Advisory Committee at its next meeting. There may also be action items from the 146 

COVID-19 Task Force to review. 147 

 148 

Selectman D’Angelo stated that the CIP Committee will meet on Thursday at 4pm. The Joint 149 

Facilities Advisory Committee will also meet on Thursday at 6pm. He noted that there is 150 

paperwork that needs to be completed by the Cemetery Trustees in order to be reimbursed 151 

approximately $41,000. DPW Director Eric Hahn will be helping to get this paperwork 152 

completed. 153 

 154 

Selectman Pray stated that the Recreation Commission did not have a quorum available for its 155 

last meeting. 156 

 157 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 158 

adjourn the meeting at 7:06pm. 159 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 160 

 161 

 162 

 163 

      164 

NEXT MEETING: Monday, August 23, 2021 165 

 166 

 167 

    168 

_________________________       __________________ 169 

Selectman Danielle Pray Date 170 

Page 157 of 157


	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Citizens' Forum
	4. Scheduled Appointments
	1. Bill Swift, Goldens on the Green, Sunday October 1
	Goldens on the Green Plan 2021 -  081321 - Summary

	2. Chuck McAuley, Speed limit change request for Stat
	Proposed Speed Limit Reduction of NH

	3. Senator Gary Daniels, Legislative Updates

	5. Interviews: Open Space Advisory Committee Applicants
	1. Applications and Letters of Interest
	3258_001


	6. Administration
	1. Administrative updates
	Staff Report
	mpsc_2021-08-18_ns


	7. Staff Reports
	1. New Accountant Welcome
	Staff Report

	2. FY21 Revenue & Expenditure Status Update
	Staff Report
	043021 Budget v Actual - Revenue & Expenditures
	043021 Budget v Actual - Revenue
	FY 21 Expenditure Budget Status
	FY21 Revenue Budget Status

	3. Part-Time Dispatcher Hire
	Staff Report
	PT Dispatcher, Memo and PAR

	4. CLG Grant Paperwork
	Staff Report
	2021 CLG Grant Application
	2021 Complete Grant Package-Amherst
	Municipal Certification of Authority
	SF 424 Forms

	5. Garage Doors
	Staff Report
	01-22 Garage Door award Forms
	01-22 steel building ov door bid 7-2-21
	Overhead Door Company of Manchester (2)

	6. COVID-19 Task Force Update
	Staff Report


	8. Approvals
	1. Baboosic Lake Community Septic Warrants
	Staff Report
	Baboosic Lake Community Septic Warrants October 2021 public

	2. Assessing
	Staff Report
	Item A PA-16 Reimbursement

	3. AP, Payroll and Minutes
	Staff Report
	2021.08.09 BOS MINUTES, DRAFT 


	9. Action Items
	10. Old/New Business
	 Adjournment
	 Next Meeting:  September 13, 2021

	Rep_Title: 
	5N: 
	Today: 08/05/2021
	Rep_Title1: 
	5N1: 
	Today1: 08/05/2021


